
06/15/2016
IV. a. 1

1

KINGSBURG CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
June 1, 2016

The Invocation, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance, was led by Mayor Bruce Blayney.

6:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING

Call to Order: Mayor Blayney called the Regular Meeting of the Kingsburg City Council to order at 
6:01pm.

Council Members present: Ben Creighton, Staci Smith, Michelle Roman and Mayor Bruce Blayney.

City Staff present: City Manager Alex Henderson, City Attorney Mike Noland, Finance Director Maggie 
Moreno, Planning Consultant Holly Owen, City Engineer Dave Peters, and City Clerk Abigail Palsgaard.

Public Comments:

Fire Captain Wayne Osborne asked the Council to continue the water conservation efforts due to there still 
being a water shortage in Southern California and the underground aquifers not recharging. 

Dave Meyer, 1525 20th Ave., spoke about the old jail, the process to save it including procuring a grant, and 
how he keeps it open 365 days a year. He spoke about the alley that leads to the jail between the Fire 
Department and Dick’s garage and its terrible condition. He asked City Council to look into repairing the 
alley.

Approve Agenda: A motion was made by Council Member Roman, seconded by Council Member 
Creighton, to approve the agenda as published. The motion carried by unanimous voice vote of members
present.

Consent Calendar – A motion was made by Council Member Creighton, seconded by Council Member
Smith, to approve the consent calendar as published. The motion carried by unanimous voice vote of 
members present.

1. Approval of City Council Minutes – Approve the minutes from the regular 
meeting held on May 18, 2016 as prepared by City Clerk Abigail Palsgaard.

2. Check Register– Ratify/approve payment of bills listed on the check register for 
the period April 23, 2016 through May 25, 2016 as prepared by Accounts Payable
Clerk Grace Reyna.

3. Treasurer’s Report- Approve the Treasurer’s Report as of April 30, 2016 as 
prepared by Finance Director Maggie Moreno. 



Kingsburg City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes
June 1, 2016

2

4. Consolidation of November 8, 2016 Election- Adopt Resolution 2016-028 
Requesting County Elections To Conduct The Election, Requesting Consolidation of 
Election And Determining Payment For Candidate’s Statement, and for the 
Appointment To Office if No One Or Only One Person Is Nominated.

5. Gann Limit – Adopt Resolution No. 2016- 029 adopting the Gann Limit Calculation 
for the 2016/17 Fiscal Year using the City Growth Percentage. Staff Report prepared 
by Finance Director Maggie Moreno.  

Pulled Consent Calendar Items: None.

REGULAR CALENDAR

PUBLIC HEARING – Awarding of Competitive Allocations for Residential Development for 2016-
Staff Report prepared by Planning Consultant Holly Owen

Public Hearing opened at 6:10pm.

Planning Consultant Holly Owen discussed the growth management ordinance, the history of the ordinance, 
and that this meeting is a calendar driven discussion. In 2013 City Council approved a rolling allocation 
process. This year three projects have have applied and the allocations approved by the Planning 
Commission. She said she understands there is a high level of citizen concern. She said she wants to 
emphasize this action is only to approve the allocation. If the allocations are approved there are many steps 
for the developer including annexation and conforming to North Kingsburg Specific Plan (herein after 
known as “NKSP”), city regulations and state regulations. After that all projects will then need to come in, 
and include traffic, noise, biological studies. We are not approving a map or a plan, just the allocations.

Council Discussion opened at 6:16pm.

Council Member Roman asked Staff to clarify, are they asking Council for approval for them to able to go 
to the next step. Planning Consultant Owen said at this point they are requesting allocations of housing 
units, if approved they are going to have to address community issues, traffic issues, environmental issues. 
Without allocation approval, applicants cannot start the process, cannot submit to site plan review. With 
approval the applicants will have to work with staff, and hopefully citizens as we requested. City Attorney 
Noland said that is correct, the reason for the growth management was to limit the residential growth. In 
order for the developer to seek their land use entitlements, which in this case will be annexation, tentative 
tract maps, environmental review and site plan review. They can’t begin that process till the units have been 
awarded. If approved they will have to go through the process with LafCO. We are not talking about traffic 
tonight, all of that is done after the units are awarded. 

City Attorney Noland said to address an issue that has come up, if as a result of going through the 
entitlement process and something changes, the applicant will have to file an application for approval of 
City Council for any changes in regard to the number of housing allotments.  The applicant can only reduce 
the number, they cannot add. All we are doing tonight is Council is considering the recommendation of the 
Planning Commission to award these units so these development projects can initiate the land use 
entitlement and move forward through the City requirements and LafCO. Ms. Owen said she wanted to 



Kingsburg City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes
June 1, 2016

3

clarify that LafCO will be the final step, and the project needs to be approved at several levels before it gets 
to that point. The applicants are well aware of this.

Mayor Blayney when the Growth Management Plan was developed there were people coming in wanting to 
build more than the 150 units per year. That is why the Growth Management Plan has an allocation process. 
The developers have to apply for an allocation, once that is approved no matter what their ‘tentative’ or 
‘idea’ map looks like, that is not the map that will be finalized. The next step is the developer has to conform
to the provisions of the NKSP including lot size, traffic patterns, width of streets, all of those kind of things. 
We have building standards in place. They have to modify and work with our standards. I know there are 
concerns over a tentative map where the lots are smaller than 7,000 sq. ft. that is not up to our standard in 
our NKSP. These tentative maps were done because the developer had a deadline to submit a tentative map 
to the Planning Commission. Council and Staff understand that this is only the first step in the process and 
that developers have to meet the standards of the NKSP. 

City Attorney Noland said as these projects come up they will be subject to a public hearing in front of the 
Planning Commission. He said he wanted to make sure they understand this will not be the only Public 
Hearing in the process.

City Manager Henderson notified the public about the ability to sign up for email alerts for when agendas 
are posted on the City website. He said once the approval process gets to a specific point and you own 
property within 300 feet you will receive a notice in the mail if Staff is recommending approval of a 
subdivision map. 

Public Comment opened at 6:38pm.

Melvin Enns, 1911 Bergren Ct., asked about the tentative map and if it had been annexed into the City. Staff
replied that these properties have not been annexed.

Lisa Benslay, 2363 Solig St., Asked that City Council considers that duplexes and triplexes are not for that 
side of town. 

Paul Kruper, 2601 19th, spoke about maintaining a high quality of life. Said he has concerns about the maps.
 Asked about the Growth Management Policy regarding changing the projects and that maybe the 
allocations would be cancelled. Asked that City Council postpone this for a couple of weeks.

City Attorney Noland answered that the developer could apply to change the map and that the code gives 
direction to Council.

City Manager Henderson said Staff has had multiple conversations with the applicants and that they are 
aware of the NKSP, some of them are here tonight.

Randy Heckman, 2931 16th, spoke about good quality growth, and he requests that parks are put in. Spoke 
about the existing problem of traffic on 19th street. He is against multi-family housing, and that it causes 
blight. 



Kingsburg City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes
June 1, 2016

4

Jack Shantz, 2651 19th, not in opposition of growth. Opposition to the idea map from the Nelson property 
and the traffic problem. Asked them not to vote on it. Spoke about water usage.

Ron Schreiner, 2641 19th, said he is worried about traffic problems that already exist and will get worse with
the proposed map. 

Bill Willeford, 2631 19th, spoke about the existing traffic problem that already exists on 19th Ave. He said he
is fine with entry level homes, but thinks council should drop the number of allotments down.

Teresa Schreiner, 2641 19th , said that the neighbors would like their input for traffic concerns and allocation
number concerns. 

Mayor Blayney said let the neighbors know that there is a public hearing for the site plan review, and you 
can speak at that time at the Planning Commission. He said the map is just for the allocation process, the 
developer had a deadline.

Council Member Roman said if this map came before council I wouldn’t approve it. She said concerns are 
valid.

Council Member Creighton said why are we approving more allocations than what is possible, why don’t we
approve less and be more realistic.

City Manager Henderson said the Growth Management Policy doesn’t allow you to ask for more allocations
after this process.

Belinda Shantz, 2651 19th, said developers have resources for attorneys, they are there to make money, and 
can we realistically fight back?

Dave Crinklaw, 13837 Zediker, said he is there representing West Start Construction, one of the applicants, 
he said they are into building neighborhoods. He said they are going through the process and request the 
citizens read NKSP.  He said he has to start with a conceptual plan, if they lose a lot or two, so be it to get 
approval from the city engineer.

Mayor Blayney read an email from Don Pauley regarding concerns of traffic and requests a traffic study.

Public Comment closed at 7:27pm.

Continued Council Discussion opened at 7:27pm.

Council Member Roman asked if housing allocations are voted on together, or separately.

City Attorney Noland said Council has the ability to vote separately

Council Member Roman asked how long if postponed.



Kingsburg City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes
June 1, 2016

5

City Attorney Noland said Council could continue the public hearing to the next city council meeting. He 
said the applicants would need to wait 6 months if you deny them and they would have to reapply.

Council Member Creighton asked is there are reason why we are looking at all of them as one and not each 
one separately.

City Attorney Noland said you have sufficient allocations to award to all three units.

Council Member Smith asked about the CEQA review and if it includes a traffic study.

Planning Consultant Owen said yes, that will happen before the LafCO approval.

Council Member Smith asked would it be the traffic study that would impose the outlet road.

City Manager Henderson said a lot of stuff will happen behind the scenes, developers will work with Staff 
and there are several levels of review before it is reviewed and goes back in front of Council.

Mayor Blayney asked Holly to go over the housing allocation process from the in progress Lennar 
subdivision.

Planning Consultant Owen said the developer bought the property, had to go through site plan review, they 
received comments, they went before the Planning Commission for the condition of use permit per the 
NKSP, they had to initiate annexation through the Planning Commission and Council and had to get a 
CEQA report. She said all reports will be available through the City Clerk. It all takes 9 months, minimum 
from the start of the process to the point Lennar is at right now. The City has an interest making sure the 
NKSP is done right. 

Public Comment re-opened at 7:41pm.

Randy Heckman, 2931 16th, said he doesn’t trust the process.

Public Comment closed at 7:42pm.

Council Member Creighton asked to hear from the developers.

Mayor Blayney said he doesn’t feel that developers would have to come in and defend themselves at this 
time, they will have to at site plan review. 

Council Member Creighton said that they are missing a council member, and in the past they postponed 
votes. 

Council Member Smith asked about the multifamily mixed used housing in the NKSP

Mayor Blayney said multifamily mixed used housing is encouraged by our plan and the state.



Kingsburg City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes
June 1, 2016

6

Planning Consultant Owen said it is desirable to have several well done multifamily mixed used housing 
units in a larger project instead of having them pocketed off. She said we have some with large lots included
in a project with multifamily lots. 

Public Hearing closed at 7:52pm.

A motion was made by Council Member Creighton, seconded by Council Member Roman, to continue 
the public hearing on June 15, 2016.  The motion carried by unanimous voice vote of members present.

City Manager Henderson asked for direction.

PUBLIC HEARING – Assessment District No. 93-01 – Consider Approval of  Engineer’s Report and 
Levy and Collection of Assessments within such District for Fiscal Year 2015/2016

Public Hearing opened at 8:09pm.

Finance Director Margarita Moreno discussed the landscaping and lighting district, recommended they 
approve resolution 2016-031.

Council Discussion opened at 8:11pm.

Council Discussion closed at 8:11pm.

Public Comment opened at 8:11pm.

Public Comment closed at 8:11pm.

Continued Council Discussion opened at 8:11pm.

Close Public Hearing 8:12pm.

A motion was made by Council Member Roman, seconded by Council Member Creighton, to adopt 
Resolution No. 2016-031 approving the Engineer’s Report for Assessment District No. 93-01 and the Levy 
and Collection of Assessments within such District for Fiscal Year 2016/2017 and Confirming Diagrams 
and Assessments Pursuant to the Provisions of Part 2 of Division 15 of the California Streets and Highways 
Code and as Provided by Article XIII D of the California Constitution. The motion carried by unanimous 
voice vote of members present.

Fiscal Year 2016/17 Budget Review

City Manager Alex Henderson presented the proposed 2016/17 Fiscal Year Budget. He discussed 
revenues for 2015/2016. He reported that taxes and licenses and fees are high, police services are lower, 
and overall revenues are expect to outpace estimates by $400,000.



Kingsburg City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes
June 1, 2016

7

The City Manager discussed expenditures, including grants, retirements and overtime costs. He also 
discussed special funds, enterprise funds, recreation funds, and department accomplishments of 
2015/2016.

He said all funds budget total is $18,820,259 for 2016/2017, personnel costs are up for insurance, 
CalPERS and worker comp. The City Manager spoke about the higher tax trend, retirement of the triple 
flip and other factors. He also discussed gas taxes being down, upcoming road projects, including 
putting in handicap ramps on the curbs of older neighborhoods. The City Manager talked about 
personnel cost savings for 2016/2017 due to employee turnover. He discussed grant funds for sidewalk 
repair, 2016/2017 Capital improvement projects, and funding for an additional police officer.

Council directed Staff to set for public hearing at the June 15, 2016 meeting.

Water Conservation Report

City Manager Alex Henderson spoke about the State removing the water mandate regarding the drought,
and he asked for direction. He spoke about residences asking to be able to water earlier due to not being 
able to see at night if they are watering. He said our residences have done an extremely commendable 
job. 

Council discussed changing the hours and going from two days to three days to water. Council decided 
on no watering 6am to 6pm and allowing watering three days a week until November, when it will go 
back to two days a week.  They decided to suspend penalties but not citations.

Council Reports and Staff Communications 

Community Services Commission
Council Member Roman said they meet and discussed the success of the popup skate park, about 
bringing another popup Skate Park or purchasing their own pieces to do our own pop up Skate Park. 

Public Safety Committee
Council Member Creighton said they meet in 2 weeks.

Chamber of Commerce
Council Member Smith said it was a successful Swedish Festival and they are looking forward to the 
Band Concerts in the Park.

Economic Development
Council Member Roman said they haven’t met.

Finance Committee
Mayor Blayney said their report is the budget presentation.

Planning Commission
Mayor Blayney said they haven’t met since the last meeting.



Kingsburg City Council
Regular Meeting Minutes
June 1, 2016

8

City Manager’s Report
None.

Other Business as May Properly Come Before the City Council
Mayor Blayney said the City received a thank you card from Maxine Olsen saying she appreciated the 
great honor of being a Grand Marshall of the Swedish Festival.

Council Member Roman said she attended the ribbon cutting for Valley Health Team and they have a 
nice facility.

Planning Consultant Owen spoke about the site plan for the Chelsea project applying for tax credit.

Adjourn Joint Kingsburg City Council Meeting
Kingsburg City Council Regular Meeting was adjourned at 9:01pm.

Submitted by:

___________________________________________

Abigail Palsgaard, City Clerk


